This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Public Document Pack

DARLINGTON

Borough Council

Health and Housing Scrutiny
Committee Agenda

10.00 am
Wednesday, 2 November 2022
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Darlington, DL1 5QT

Members of the Public are welcome to attend this Meeting.

1. Introduction/Attendance atMeeting
2. Declarations of Interest

3. To approve the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny held on 31 August 2022 (Pages 3
- 6)

4. Better Care Fund —
Report of the Assistant Director Commissioning, Performance and Transformation
(Pages 7-10)

5. Darlington Drug and Alcohol Service (STRIDE) —
Presentation by the Contract Manager and Executive Director of Business Development
(Pages 11-18)

6. Housing Services Fire Safety Policy —
Report of the Assistant Director — Housing and Revenues
(Pages 19 - 38)

7. Healthwatch Darlington Annual Report 2021/2022 —
Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer, Healthwatch Darlington
(Pages 39 - 58)



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

8. Darlington Health Profile 2021/2022 —
Presentation by the Public Health Principal
(Pages 59 -74)

9. Work Programme —
Report of the Assistant Director Law and Governance
(Pages 75-90)

10. Health and Wellbeing Board —
The Board last met on 22 September 2022. The next meeting is scheduled for 15
December 2022.

11. SUPPLEMENTARY ITEM(S) (if any) which in the opinion of the Chair of this Committee are
of an urgent nature and can be discussed at the meeting.

12. Questions

idusuw

Luke Swinhoe
Assistant Director Law and Governance

Tuesday, 25 October 2022

Town Hall
Darlington.

Membership
Councillors Bell, Dr. Chou, Heslop, Layton, McEwan, Mills, Newall, Preston, Mrs H Scott and
Wright

If you need this information in a different language or format or you have any other queries on
this agenda please contact Hannah Miller, Democratic Officer, Operations Group, during
normal office hours 8.30 a.m. to 4.45 p.m. Mondays to Thursdays and 8.30 a.m. to 4.15 p.m.
Fridays email: hannah.miller@darlington.gov.uk or telephone 01325 405801



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Age nda Item 3

HEALTH AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 31 August 2022

PRESENT — Councillors Bell (Chair), Heslop, Layton, McEwan, Newall, Preston and Mrs H Scott
APOLOGIES — Councillors Dr. Chou, Mills and Wright

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE -Jill Foggin (Communications Manager, County Durham and Darlington
Foundation Trust), Dominic Gardner (Tees, Eskand Wear Valley NHS Foundation Trust),

Diane Lax (Healthwatch Darlington), Pauline Fletcher (NHS England and NHS Improvement -
North Eastand Yorkshire), Tom Robson (Durham and Darlington and Tees Local Dental
Network) and Dr Kamini Shah (Consultant Dentistry NHS England)

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE — Penny Spring (Director of Public Health), Anthony Sandys
(Assistant Director - Housing and Revenues), Matthew Hufford (Communication and
Engagement Co-ordinator), Michael Conway (Mayoral and Democratic Officer) and Allison Hill
(Democratic Officer)

HH12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest reported at the meeting.
HH13 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THIS SCRUTINY HELD ON 29 JUNE 2022

Submitted — The Minutes (previously circulated) of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee
held on 29 June 2022.

RESOLVED — That the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee held on 29 June
2022 be approved as a correct record.

HH14 UPDATE ON NHS DENTISTRY DARLINGTON

The Senior Primary Care Manager (Dental Commissioning Lead — North Eastand North
Cumbria), NHS England and NHS Improvement — North Eastand Yorkshire and Chair of
Durham and Darlington and Tees Local Dental Network gave a presentation (previously
circulated) updating Members on NHS Dentistry in Darlington.

In providing background on NHS dentistry, Members were advised that a patient could
contact any NHS dental practice to access care; dental contracts were activity and demand
led; contract regulations set out contract currency which was measured in units of dental
activity (UDA) and these were attributable to a banded course of treatments; NHS dentistry
regulations did not prohibit the provision of private dentistry by NHS dental practices; and in
2019-20 only 90.5 per cent of the total commissioned capacity in Darlington was being
utilised.

Reference was made to the commissioned capacity as of August 2022 for general dental

services; Members were advised of the additional services commissioned by NHS England;
and Members were informed that Middleton St George Dental Practice handed back their

Page 3



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

contract in 2020.

The pressures and challenges were outlined, these included Covid-19 impacts, workforce
recruitment and retention and NHS dental contract; and details were provided of the
package of initial reforms to the NHS dental contract, which were published by NHS England
in July 2022. It was reported that engagement to inform the next stages of the reform
programme had commenced.

Details were provided of the local measures and actions taken to date, including incentives
for all NHS dental practices to prioritise patients that had not been seenin the practice
within the previous 24 months (adults) and 12 months (children) who require urgent dental
care; increased investment into the new Dental Out of Hours Service contract; and additional
funding made available to practices who were able to offer additional clinical capacity above
their contracted levels, of which take up in Darlington was limited to only one practice that
delivered additional 15 sessions during February and March 2022.

The next steps to improve access to dental services were outlined and included a review of
plans for the recommissioning of the activity lost from the Middleton St George NHS contract
handback; seeking expressions of interest from NHS practices that may have the capacity and
capability to deliver additional access as an interim measure to assist with the current
demand for NHS dental care; and work with current practices to explore how NHS England
can support them to maximise their clinical treatment capacity and make contracts
sustainable in the long-term.

Scrutiny were assured that all NHS dental practices were able to safely provide a full range of
treatments however demand for care remained extremely high with dental practices having
to balance addressing the backlog of care with managing new patient demand; Practices had
been asked to prioritise patients with the greatest clinical need; and opportunities were
being explored to increase the clinical capacity available and improve access for patients.

Discussion ensued on the overall picture of dental practices in Darlington and which were
NSH practices and the reasons why residents were having problems accessing dentists; and
Members also requested some information on patients attending Accident and Emergency at
the hospital to access care.

It was generally felt that the more information and simple messages could be provided to
residents to explain the reasons why access to dental practices was a problem; outlining the
clinical definition for urgent care and also explaining that residents are able to contact any
dental practice and that they are not specifically assigned to one would be helpful. Members
also expressed their concerns that the NHS Choices website was not kept up to date sothat
residents can have relevant information.

Further discussion ensued with the representatives from NHS England on how they were
planning to encourage new NHS practices; what planning was being undertaken to allow for
the infrastructure required within the Local Plan and further housing development; and what
changes can the authority expect to see within the next six months.

Members were advised that NHS England priority was to ensure increased capacity for
urgent care; source improved clinical capacity and progress procurement; support existing

Page 4



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

HH15

HH16

practices to deliver the current level of commissioned capacity; prioritise areas where
greatest improvement needs to be addressed; and incentivise new providers.

RESOLVED — That the Senior Primary Care Manager (Dental Commissioning Lead — North East
and North Cumbria), NHS England and NHS Improvement — North Eastand Yorkshire and
Chair of Durham and Darlington and Tees Local Dental Network be thanked for their
informative presentation.

BETTER CARE FUND

The Assistant Director Commissioning, Performance and Transformation submitted a report
(previously circulated) updating Members on progress of the submission of the Darlington
Better Care Fund Plan for the 2022/23 programme.

The submitted report stated that the Better Care Fund (BCF) was a programme spanning the
NHS and Local Government which sought to join up health and care services; and that
integrated care boards (ICBs) and local government were required to agree a joint plan which
was owned by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Details were provided of the four national conditions for funding, three of which remain as
previous years, with a change to national condition 4, and the key metrics that the Plan
should focus on; funding for 2022/23 was outlined; and the funding package was not new
monies.

It was stated that the plan for Darlington was being drafted; that a service review was
underway across all funded schemes and was due to be completed by the end of September
2022; and due to timescales the draft and final plan cannot be submitted to this Scrutiny

Committee or the Health and Wellbeing Board for approval.

The Chair proposed that Members give further consideration to the submitted report at a
future meeting of this Scrutiny Committee.

RESOLVED — (a) That the progress of the draft plan be noted.
(b) That the changes to national condition 4 be noted.

(c) That this Scrutiny Committee gives further consideration to the submitted report ata
future meeting of this scrutiny committee.

CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY 2021-2024 UPDATE

The Assistant Director Housing and Revenues gave a presentation (previously circulated)
updating Members on the Customer Engagement Strategy 2021-2024.

Details were provided of the increased customer engagement following the success of

engagement events in 2021; regular events were being held in new locations and Estate
walkabouts had been reintroduced in high profile areas; particular reference was made to

Page 5



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

HH17

HH18

the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund engagement event and the estate walkabout in
Firthmoor.

It was reported that the Council continued to be a member of Tpas, promoting, supporting
and championing tenant involvement and social empowerment in social housing; details
were provided of the Housing Webpage redesign undertaken in early 2022; and the Tenants
Panel continued to provide feedback on a range of policy changes.

Reference was made to the Tenant Satisfaction Measures that were due to come into place
in April 2023; that surveys would be sent to tenants and would cover Repairs, Building Safety,
Complaints, Customer Engagement and Neighbourhoods.

Members noted the engagement work undertaken with refugee families; the Housing Annual
Report was due to be released imminently and Housing Connect was due to be released in
August 2022 and March 2023; and customer satisfaction surveys were being undertaken to
ensure the local authority were carrying out high quality work.

Details were provided of Docusign, a new signature portal and its associated benefits; and
reference was made to work planned in 2022/2023.

Members acknowledged the good work of the Tenants Panel within the community and that
the feedback they provide be encouraged; noted the progress that had been made and that
the service was more customer friendly with the use of Docusign.

RESOLVED — That the presentation be noted.
WORK PROGRAMME

The Assistant Director Law and Governance submitted a report (previously circulated)
requesting that consideration be given to this Scrutiny Committee’s work programme and to
consider any additional areas which Members would like to suggest be included in the
previously approved work programme.

Members agreed that a visit be arranged to the Drug and Alcohol Service (We are With You);
discussed waiting times within the CAMHS service and agreed to examine potential
improvements at a future meeting; and requested that Members receive a further update
from NHS England on NHS Dentistry in six months time.

RESOLVED — That the work programme be updated to reflect discussions.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Members were informed that the Board last met on 7 July 2022 and that the next meeting of
the Board was scheduled for 22 September, 2022.

RESOLVED — That Members look forward to receiving an update on the work of the Health
and Wellbeing Board at a future meeting of this Scrutiny Committee.

Page 6



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Agenda Item 4

HEALTH AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2 NOVEMBER 2022

BETTER CARE FUND 2022/23 PROGRAMME

SUMMARY REPORT
Purpose of the Report

1. The purpose of this report is to update Health and Housing Scrutiny committee
members on progress of the submission of the Darlington Better Care Fund Plan for the
2022/23 Programme.

2. Update on the review across all funded schemes as part of the programme
Summary

3. The use of BCF mandatory funding streams (NHS minimum contribution, Improved
Better Care Fund grant (iBCF) and Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) must be jointly agreed
by integrated care boards (ICBs) and local authorities to reflect local health and care
priorities, with plans signed off by health and wellbeing boards (HWBs). BCF plans
should include stretching ambitions for improving outcomes against the national
metrics for the fund. No new metrics have been introduced for 2022-23.

4. The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a programme spanning both the NHS and Local
Government which seeks to join-up health and care services, so that people can
manage their own health and wellbeing and live independently in their communities for
as long as possible. The Fund is one of the government’s national vehicles for driving
health and social care integration. It requires clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) and
local government to agree a joint plan, owned by the Health and Wellbeing Board
(HWB). These are joint plans for using pooled budgets to support integration, governed
by an agreement under section 75 of the NHS Act (2006).

5. The framework confirms the 4 national conditions for funding. 3 of these remain as
previous years, with a change to national condition 4, as shown below:

(a) Ajointly agreed plan between local health and social care commissioners, signed
off by the HWB

(b) NHS contribution to adult social care to be maintained in line with the uplift to CCG
minimum contribution

(c) Investin NHS-commissioned out-of-hospital services

Page 7



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

10.

11.

(d) Implementing the BCF policy objectives to:

(i) Enable people to stay well, safe and independent at home for longer, and,
(if) Provide the right care in the right place at the right time

As well as the 4 national conditions of funding, the plan includes the delivery against4
key metrics of:

(a) Avoidable admissions: unplanned admissions for chronic ambulatory care sensitive
conditions

(b) Residential care admissions: annual rate of older people whose long-term support
needs are best met by admission to residential and nursing care homes

(c) Effectiveness of reablement: percentage of discharges to a person’s usual place of
residence

(d) Discharge destination: Percentage of discharge to a person’s usual place of
residence

Funding for 2022/23 Programme is set out below:

(a) Minimum NHS (CCG) contributions: £9,134,828 (5.66% uplift)
(b) Improved Better Care Fund: £4,488,137 (3% increase)
(c) Disabled Facilities Grant: £1,063,345 (no change)

It must be noted that the funding package for 2022/23 is not new monies, as these are
allocated against ASC budgets.

Following publication of the Planning Guidance and confirmation of the submission
requirements, the Plan for Darlington was submitted to the BCF national team on 26t
September. This followed endorsement by the Programme Board.

All Health and Wellbeing areas have been advised that the outcome of the assurance of
all plans will not be completed until 24 October, and any approval letters will not be
issued until towards the end of November.

In parallel to the drafting and submission of the 2022/23 Darlington Plan, a service
review is underway across all funded schemes, to ensure these schemes continue to
deliver against the priorities of the Programme, and to ensure emerging priorities can
be funded. It is expected this review will be completed by the end of October, reporting
to the Programme Board in early November.

Page 8



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Recommendation
12. Itis recommended that:-

(a) Scrutiny committee notes the submission of the Darlington 22/23 Plan and
approval of the plan is expected towards the end of November.

(b) Note the programme review underway, with a report to be tabled at future
scrutiny meetings, detailing the outcome of the review.
Christine Shields
Assistant Director Commissioning, Performance and Transformation

Background Papers

No background papers were used inthe preparation of this report OR detail of background papers.

author:Extension

S$17 Crime and Disorder Not applicable

Health and Well Being The Better Care Fund is owned by the Health and
Wellbeing Board

Carbon Impact and Climate None

Change

Diversity None

Wards Affected All

Groups Affected Frail elderly people at risk of admission/re-
admission to hospital

Budget and Policy Framework Budgets pooled through section 75 agreement
between DBC and Darlington CCG

Key Decision No

Urgent Decision No

Council Plan Aligned

Efficiency New ways of delivery care

Impact on Looked After Children No impact

and Care Leavers

Darlington Better Care Fund Plan 2022/23

A full copy of the published planning requirements can be found at:

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/better-care-fund-planning-requirements-2022-23/

Page 9


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/better-care-fund-planning-requirements-2022-23/

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Timetable for submission

BCF planning requirements published 19 July 2022

Optional draft BCF plan submission to 18 August 2022

regional BCM

BCF Plan submission from local HWBB 26 September 2022
(agreed by ICBs and LAs)

Scrutiny of BCF Plans 26 Sept — 24 October 2022
Approval letters issued 30 November 2022
Section 75 agreements submitted 31 December 2022

Page 10



Health & Housing Scrutiny Committee

Darlington Drug and Alcohol Service
(S5TRIDE)

Gary Besterfield - Contract Manager
Sarah Allen - Executive director of business development

2nd November 2022 WlthJOU



Overview

Comparison of performance - 2020/21 and 2021/225~ g =B
mm

Future ambition

Questions

=




2021/22 Performance headlines

e 10.7% more people in treatment
e Retained 86.9% more people in treatment (82.5%)
e Unplanned exits decreased to 19.2% (23.1%)

e Successful completions increased to 23.3%
(13.2%)
4.67% for opiate clients (2.63%)

33.70% for non-opiate clients (18.67%)

25% non-opiate and alcohol clients (8.3%)

29.72% for alcohol clients (12.63%).



T abed
o

Representations decreased to 14.9% for all cohorts (17.9%)
Prison to community engagement has increased to 59.6%
Deaths in treatment have increased to 2.2% (1.2%)

Although we remain higher than national average for Naloxone
distribution and Hep C referrals to treatment - testing and
distribution has decreased

CQC rated good in all areas




Our ambition

GT abed

e To micro eliminate Hep C in our services by Dec 2023

Increase Naloxone and peer 2 peer program

Continue to develop ITS Ambassador Program

Continue to improve performance and access

e Establish Tubwell Row as a service location

e RADAR partnership with Recovery Connections £

e Widen partnership working



%

Thank you for listening to us.
Do you have any questions

\ [/ 7@

& e






This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Age nda Item 6

HEALTH AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2 NOVEMBER 2022

HOUSING SERVICES FIRE SAFETY POLICY

SUMMARY REPORT
Purpose of the Report

1. For Members to consider the draft Housing Services Fire Safety Policy 2022-2027 before
approval by Cabinet on 6 December 2022.

Summary

2. Darlington Borough Council provides 355 homes for local residents in 7 Sheltered Housing
schemes and 3 Extra Care schemes. We are committed to ensuring that all of our tenants
enjoy their right to a safe home.

3. The Housing Services Fire Safety Policy 2022-2027 at Appendix 1 sets out how we will
provide staff, residents, visitors and partner organisations in Council owned Sheltered
Housing and Extra Care schemes with clear guidelines as to how to prevent fires and what
action to take in the event of a fire, to protect themselves and others.

4. The Tenants Panel has been consulted on the draft policy and the outcome of this
consultation is given at paragraph 11. However, the proposals have received
overwhelming support.

Recommendation

5. Itis recommended that Members:-

(a) Consider the report and draft Housing Services Fire Safety Policy 2022-2027 at
Appendix 1 and agree its onward submission to Cabinet.
Anthony Sandys
Assistant Director — Housing and Revenues
Background Papers

No background papers were used in the preparation of this report.

Anthony Sandys: Extension 6926

Page 19



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

S17 Crime and Disorder

This report has no implications for crime and
disorder

Health and Wellbeing

There are no issues which this report needs to
address

Carbon Impact and Climate
Change

There are no issues which this report needs to
address

Diversity

There are no issues which this report needs to
address

Wards Affected

All wards with Council Sheltered Housing and Extra
Care schemes

Groups Affected

Council tenants in those schemes

Budget and Policy Framework

This report does not represent a change to the
budget and policy framework

Key Decision

This is not a key decision

Urgent Decision

This is not an urgent decision

Council Plan This report supports the Council plan to provide
tenants with good quality, safe Council housing
Efficiency There are no implications

Impact on Looked After Children
and Care Leavers

This report has no impact on Looked After Children
or Care Leavers

Information and Analysis

6. Darlington Borough Council provides 355 homes for local residents in 7 Sheltered Housing
schemes and 3 Extra Care schemes. The schemes covered by this policy are as follows:

Sheltered Housing Schemes

MAIN REPORT

Scheme Number of Homes
Branksome Hall Drive 50
Dinsdale Court 22
Linden Court 20
Rockwell House 38
Roxby Court 32
Ted Fletcher Court 48
Windsor Court 32

Extra Care Schemes

Scheme Number of Homes
Dalkeith House 39
Oban Court 32
Rosemary Court 42

7. The Housing Services Fire Safety Policy 2022-2027 sets out how we will provide staff,
residents, visitors and partner organisations in these Sheltered Housing and Extra Care

Page 20



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

schemes with clear guidelines as to how to prevent fires and what action to take in the
event of a fire, to protect themselves and others.

8. The policy covers the following areas:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

Relevant legislation — this section sets out the relevant fire safety legislation that
Darlington Borough Council must comply with as part of our statutory duties to
provide our tenants with safe homes.

Policy statement and aims — these sections set out the key aims of the policy, as
follows:

(i) To provide appropriate guidance for staff.

(ii) To provide procedures and resident information as to what actions need to be
taken in the event of a fire at any of our schemes.

(iii) To ensure that staff, residents, visitors and partner organisations are safe and
protected.

(iv) To meet the requirements of Darlington Fire and Rescue Services.

(v) Toimprove resident’s knowledge of fire awareness and promote responsibility
towards fire safety.

Our schemes and responsibilities — these sections set out the responsibilities for the
Council, residents, visitors and partner organisations in relation to fire safety
arrangements. This includes the Council’s responsibilities to provide suitable and
sufficient inspection, service and maintenance arrangements for each building, along
with fire safety awareness training for staff and fire risk assessments for residents.

Construction features and fire alarm systems — this section sets out the construction
features for each scheme to prevent fires and the procedures in place for when a fire
alarm is activated, including the responses by staff.

Fire risk assessments — this sections sets out the processes as to how fire risk
assessments will be conducted and reviewed.

Personal emergency and evacuation plans and care assessments — this section sets
out the processes for residents who may require assistance to evacuate a building.

Stay put policy — this section sets out the guidance for residents as to when they
should evacuate or remain in the building in the event of a fire. This policy has been
developed with the Darlington Fire and Rescue Service.

Instructions for residents and visitors — this section sets out the key advice for
residents and visitors in the event of a fire.

Regulator of Social Housing

Page 21



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Social Housing is controlled by the Regulator of Social Housing and they have set out
specific expectations and outcomes that providers of social housing must comply with.

One of the four statutory Consumer Standards set by the Regulator is the Home Standard.

10. The Home Standard sets expectations for registered providers of social housing to provide
good quality homes for residents and in particular, to meet all applicable statutory
requirements that provide for the health and safety of occupants in their homes, including
fire safety legislation.

Outcome of Consultation

11. The Tenants Panel were consulted in September 2022 and overall, the Panel supported the
proposed Housing Services Fire Safety Policy. Examples of the Panel’s comments were as
follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

“As with any policies some of the text is slightly longwinded, but that is completely
understandable as you would want all bases to be covered. Maybe it could be an
options to deconstruct it so that everyone could understand it. All inallitis a good
policy.”

“After reading the policy | think that it is very informative and covers any questions
that | had. Itis vital for any policies such as this to be understandable and it certainly
is that.”

“Ithink it is a brilliant piece of work and is extremely well written. It takes me back to
my scheme manager days as we had to revise Fire Policies. |think the length is
perfect and there isn’t anything that | could think off that was missed off. The ‘Stay
Put Policyis a great name, because it is clear and ensures that everyone knows what
they are doing. | have no issues.”

“1think as a whole the document is really good. It is informative and covers
everything that is needed. My only issue is that some people would not care about
the legislation and only read about what they need to do in the case of a fire. So
maybe that information should be higher up the policy because people may switch off
and not read the rest.”

Page 22



- . | DARLINGTON

=06 Borough Council

Fire Sately Yolicy for
Shel{eved and Cxtra Care
Accommodation

( 2022-2021



2 | Fire Safety Policy for Sheltered and Extra Care AccommB@gQO%ON



Contev(s

1RO TN [ 1 Y 11 Tod { oY o PR 4
2.0 Relevant Legislation .........ccccciinnnneeiiiiicciinnnnnsssnsssssseccssssssssssssssssssssssssssnne 4
3.0  Policy Statement ......cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeessesssesssssssssssssssssssns 5
4.0  POLICY AIMS .ccceiiiiiiiiiiinnnssnnnenniieccsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 5
S0 O T © 10T g =1 od g 1= 3 1= N 6
6.0  RESPONSIDIIITIES ...ceeeeeiiiririirrieireiereererrerereereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnes 6
7.0  Construction FEAtUreS ........ccuuuiiiivueriinreiiciisneiicssnticnssnetecsssescssserssssssssssens 7
8.0  Fire Alarm SYSteM ...uueeeiiiiiiiiiiininnnnsnnneniiiiccsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssse 8
9.0 Fire RisSk ASSESSMENTS .....cccceriiiiruerinssniicsssneissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssss 9
10.0 Personal Evacuation Plans (PEEPs) & Care Assessments........cccceeeuee.. 10
11.0  Stay PUL POIICY ..ot iiiiiiiniiiinticnneticnnnticsnntecssnnesesssnsesssssssssssssessssnsd 10
12.0 Review and MONITOFING ....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininnnnnmeeesiiiicsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 11
13.0  APPENAIX T cciiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeesessssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 12

Fire a@g@ﬂigf%r Sheltered and Extra Care Accommodation 2022-2027 | 3



T{roduction

Darlington Borough Council is committed to
protecting staff, residents, visitors, partner
organisations and contractors from the effects of fire
within all our properties.

We aim to achieve this through:
- Robust fire risk assessment processes.
- Increasing fire safety awareness to our residents.

- Eliminating and reducing fire hazards in our
premises.

Preventing the spread of fire and early warning
and notification to County Durham & Darlington
Fire Service.

Safety is paramount and this policy is based on the
principle that Scheme Managers, care staff and
tenants continually assess the risks to their own
safety prior to taking any action.

RelevanT LegislaTio

The Fire Safety Policy is based on the principles of
partnership working between Darlington Borough
Council (Housing Services & Adult Services, Building
Services, CCTV Control Centre), County Durham and
Darlington Fire and Rescue Services and voluntary
organisations.

Darlington Borough Council has a duty to comply
with the requirements of fire safety legislation
namely:

- Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) order 2005.

- Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) order 2005-Guide
for Sleeping Accommodation (Sheltered
Schemes).

The Housing Act 2004.

Furniture and Fittings (Fire Safety) Regulations
1988.

Electrical Equipment (Safety) Regulations 1994.

The Local Government Guide “Fire Safety in
Purpose Built Blocks of Flats” 2011 (Blocks with
Communal areas.)

Building Regulation 2010 (as amended) Schedule
1 Part B.

The Health and Safety at Work act 1974.

Dangerous Substance and explosive
Atmospheres Regulations (DESAR) 2002.

4 | Fire Safety Policy for Sheltered and Extra Care AccommBﬁQQO%@Oﬂ



folicy Statement

The purpose of the Fire Safety Policy is to provide
staff, residents, visitors, and partner organisations
with clear guidelines of what action they should take
in order to protect themselves and others.

This Policy is specific to Sheltered and Extra Care
schemes owned by Housing Services, for general
needs accommodation, with communal areas, please
see the specific fire evacuation plans which are
provided in all communal hallways.

The following bodies were consulted in the
preparation of this document:

- Housing Services.

Policy Aims

- Darlington Borough Council Health & Safety Team.
- Adult Social Care.

. CCTW

- Building Services.

. County Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue
Service.

This policy has been developed with the recognition
that staff may remain in the building in some
instances, when the fire alarm has been activated,
to maintain essential services to vulnerable and/or
tenants with a disability.

The aims of this policy are:

- To give appropriate guidance to Darlington
Borough Council staff within the extra care and
sheltered housing schemes while providing
a clear understanding of their roles and
responsibilities in relation to the Fire Safety Policy.

- To provide procedures, which accurately define
the actions to be taken in the event of a fire within
each facility. To be read in conjunction with other
documents such as, Resident Information from
each site. To ensure procedures meet the latest
national guidance and best practice.

- To provide, monitor and update the Fire Safety
Policy, so that it is fit for purpose, including a
process, which, if followed in the event of a fire,
will help to ensure that staff, residents, visitors,
partner organisations and contractors are safe and
protected.

- To meet the requirements of Darlington Fire and
Rescue Services by providing quality information
for each property. This information is located
within the main entrance Property Information Box
(PIB). This will include as a minimum; the building
design/layout drawings and up to date information
for Personal Emergency Evacuation Plans.

- To improve resident’s knowledge of Fire
Awareness and promote responsibility towards
Fire Safety. Where possible utilising the fire
service support.

Fire Eaaig@lig%r Sheltered and Extra Care Accommodation 2022-2027 |5



Our Schewes

Sheltered properties are contained under the same
roof, however all are individual flats. All schemes
have communal lounges together with gardens,
guest rooms, laundry, bin storage, mobility scooter
store, security and safety features. Some have

hair salons and meeting rooms. Communal areas
can also be used by the wider community by prior
arrangement.

Extra care schemes are similar in design to sheltered
schemes but also have care staff on site 24 hours
daily who provide social care.

Resyonsibililies

All schemes have a Scheme Manager providing
good neighbourly low level tenant support, housing
management and delivery of activities during the
normal working day Monday to Friday 08-30 to 17:00
(16:30 on Fridays) with Response Officers available at
all other times.

Each property is linked to the Darlington Lifeline
Control Centre, ensuring there is a 24-hour
emergency response should the Scheme Manager
be off duty.

The implementation of this policy is the responsibility
of the Head of Housing.

Delegated responsibility for day-to-day management,
implementation and monitoring of the policy will be
provided by Lifeline management with the support
of staff working within Sheltered and Extra Care
schemes.

It is the responsibility of Darlington Borough Council:

- To appoint a Responsible Person and/or Duty
holders and have in place a written agreement
matrix showing areas of responsibilities and
to provide a suitable and sufficient inspection,
service and maintenance to each building.

- To provide general fire safety awareness training
for all staff covering the main aspects of basic fire
safety and any issues relating to each Sheltered or
Extra Care scheme. To provide an ‘Individual Fire
Risk Assessment’ for each resident and record in
the support plan.

It is the responsibility of residents and their visitors:

- To comply with the requirements of the Fire Safety
Policy.

- To follow instruction provided by Darlington
Borough Council staff and/or members of the Fire
Service.

Other responsibilities are:

- The chair of any meetings held within any of the
Sheltered or Extra Care schemes is responsible
for ensuring attendees are familiar with fire safety
procedures for the building, using information
available and provided within meeting rooms.

- Partner organisations will be responsible for
informing staff of this policy and provision of any
suitable training to meet the needs within.

It is the responsibility of all to maintain good
housekeeping, within both communal areas and
individual accommodation. To report any defect
found to the repairs and maintenance section at the
earliest opportunity.

6 | Fire Safety Policy for Sheltered and Extra Care AccommBﬁQ@O%Oﬂ



Cons Truc Tiov Fea{ures

Our schemes provide independent living with
communal facilities. Each property was constructed
to the standards and regulations applicable at the
time of build. Each subsequent remodelling scheme
has also followed this process providing some
degree of compartmentation.

Construction is typically, concrete floors, solid wall
construction between flats and flats to communal
spaces, FD30 Fire Doors on entrance to the flats,
within corridors and onto the stair enclosures. The
roof void is also sub-divided by the apartment walls.

It is key to note that:

- The travel distances for means of escape in case
of fire in the existing buildings were suitable for its
existing use.

- Any remodelling works undertaken includes fire
doors within the flats, an upgrading of the fire
doors and frames to also prevent the passage of
smoke, reinstatement of the cavity barriers in the
roof and ceiling voids.

General repairs and maintenance are carried out
to the building/structure in a manner that will not
compromise the compartmentation in communal
areas and/or between flats or any means of escape
or egress from the building.

All staff and contractors working in the building
are suitably supervised and managed to prevent
compromising the compartmentation while
maintaining fire exit routes and ensuring good
housekeeping is always kept.

Fire E%@Q%ng% Sheltered and Extra Care Accommodation 2022-2027 |7



Fire Alarm System

All Sheltered and Extra Care schemes have a fire
alarm designed (as a minimum) to L2 Standard that
was applicable at the time of design; the systems are
permanently connected to a fire alarm monitoring
centre, located at the CCTV centre in the Town Hall
Darlington. Each Fire Alarm System is maintained as
required in BS5839.

Within individual flats, as a minimum a combined heat
and smoke detector is fitted in the entrance hall area
that forms a part of the building’s L2 fire detection
system, which also connects to the voice call system.
Each apartment is also provided with domestic
smoke/heat detection to the kitchen and corridor.

In all sheltered accommodation schemes, activation
of the fire alarm will trigger a response from:

« A duty member of staff on site (the Scheme
Manager or a member of the care team) to the
voice module within the apartment. Should this not
be responded to, the activation will default to the
fire alarm monitoring centre (CCTV)

or

- The fire alarm monitoring centre (CCTV) to the
voice module within the accommodation unit.

In all Extra care accommodation units, activation of
the fire alarm will trigger a response from:

- A duty member of staff on site (the Scheme
Manager or a member of the care team) to the
voice module within the apartment. Should this not
be responded to, the activation will default to the
fire alarm monitoring centre (CCTV).

Any no responses or an unsatisfactory response
from the occupant will be investigated by the carer
or Lifeline staff and emergency services will be
contacted. An adequate response from the occupant
and the sounder ceasing will result in the call being
closed, with the safeguard that any second activation
and/or no response or inadequate response will
result in the full emergency procedures being
followed. Instructions for residents on the actions

to take if they discover a fire or on hearing the fire
alarm, are in Appendix 1.

In communal areas, smoke detectors and heat
detectors are installed throughout the building, with

8 | Fire Safety Policy for Sheltered and Extra Care AccommB@geO&QON



manual call points located at each exit. Activation of
any of the smoke detectors will result in activation
of the fire alarm and should result in the actions as
detailed in Appendix 1 by the following persons:

« Residents, their visitors, other visitors, and
contractors.

- Staff on site.

- Staff on call.

- Alarm Receiving Centre.

- Staff from partner organisations.

Activation of a manual call point (break glass) or any
smoke/heat detector in the communal areas will
result in activation of the full fire alarm.

All activations of the fire alarm system will be
recorded. This information will include.

- Location of the unit activated.

. The reason for activation.

- Actions taken following the investigation into the
activation of the alarm.

- On site staff attendance within 3 minutes of the
detector head detecting the fire situation (this is
to allow some investigation if members of staff
are on site and prevent unnecessary disruption of
vulnerable residents).

- Off-site staff (Lifeline response officers) will
respond within a 30-minute time frame but County
Durham & Darlington Fire Service may already be
in attendance.

All existing staff will be trained in fire safety and
new staff will be working towards this. They will
have suitable and sufficient building and procedure
knowledge to cope with any situation that may
arise. Further 24-hour support will be provided by
managers and supervisors.

Five Kis\ Assessmeviis

A Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) will be undertaken

by a competent person in line with guidance and
any relevant legislation. We will make all staff aware
of the findings of the risk assessment, and this
assessment will be reviewed regularly every three
years or following any significant changes to the
building or its use.

A copy of the FRA will be provided in a prominent
place within each Sheltered and Extra Care scheme.
All new residents at the start of tenancy will be made
aware of the FRA. Details of new FRA’s, reviews

or completed remedial work will be provided to
residents during tenant engagement sessions and
coffee mornings.

All electrical installations will have an ‘Electrical
Installation Condition Report’ (EICR) completed every
5 years or earlier, should a report indicate this is
required.

A ‘No Smoking’ policy applies in all communal areas.

The Fire Alarm System will be regularly tested with
records of the test maintained. The Emergency
Lighting System will be regularly tested with records
of the test maintained. All staff will be given Fire
Awareness Training.

Regular reviews of and training on what to do in the
event of a fire will be carried out with staff, residents,
visitors, the Fire Service and Building Control,
included within the review.

We will ensure appropriate staffing levels are
maintained 24 hours each day.

Fire Eaaig@ligger Sheltered and Extra Care Accommodation 2022-2027 19



Personal Cimergevicy Cvacudlion
Alav YECYs aud Care Assessmens

A comprehensive list of residents, who may
require assistance to evacuate the building, will be

maintained close to the main fire alarm control panel.

The list will be immediately accessible to the Fire
Service on their arrival and, where possible, will be
presented to them by a member of staff on duty. Any
client information will be held in the fire document
safe located next to the fire panel and is secured
using a code known only to staff, and CCTV Control
Centre, who will inform the Fire Service of the code
on request.

When required, a PEEP will be jointly developed by
the resident and Lifeline Services. This will aim to
address how the resident can safely exit the building
during an emergency. A copy of the PEEP will be
placed in the Property Information Box (PIB).

S{ay rut rolicy

A Care Assessment will be completed prior to any
tenant moving into Extra Care accommodation.

In addition, Lifeline staff will contact each tenant
Monday to Friday and visit regularly. This will include,
monitoring the fire risks associated with each tenant
in their own home and reporting to the relevant

line manger to take the appropriate preventative
measures. This could include the removal of
equipment if a risk is identified, and the provision of
additional fire detection and warning devices, such
as, smoke/heat detectors linked to the fire alarm
system in the habitable rooms, along with vibrating
pillows, visual alarms, or additional fire protection
features, if required.

The medical condition and degree of awareness

of some residents can result in them not being
capable of being moved easily during an evacuation
or fire alarm scenario. They may become confused
and disorientated if permitted to leave the building
without adequate supervision or assistance.

It has been determined by the Fire Service and
regulatory authorities for a ‘Stay Put Policy’ to be
implemented.

The ‘Stay Put Policy’ for Sheltered and Extra Care
schemes is based on the factors below. Should any
item not be in place, a review will be undertaken to
assess the risk and the findings and will be recorded
and placed in the PIB.

- The building has a fully working and maintained
Fire Alarm System for communal areas.

Each apartment has working and maintained hard
wired smoke detectors.

Fire Doors, glazing and door furniture that meets
the FD30 standard.

Suitable compartmentation throughout the
building.

Concrete floors.
Emergency lighting installed and maintained.

- Annual gas boiler checks (flats and communal).
Fire retardant soft furnishings (communal areas).
Good standard of housekeeping throughout.

‘No Smoking’ policy in place and enforced for
communal areas.

- The building has an up-to-date EICR in place

10 | Fire Safety Policy for Sheltered and Extra Care Accomn%catreﬂgZzON



- The building has an up-to-date FRA in place and
that all issues identified have been addressed.

- Firefighting equipment is in place and serviced,
such as, fire blankets.

- Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) is up to date on
items within the building.

‘Stay Put Policy’ Quick Guide for Residents and
Visitors

- On discovering a fire in your apartment or
communal area, you and your visitor(s) should
leave immediately, closing all doors behind you,
raising the alarm on a Manual Call Point as you exit
the building.

- Ifthe fireis in a communal area and it is safe to

remain in your apartment, you will need to advise
your visitors of the process to be followed.

Only leave your apartment on the request of the
building manager, Fire Service or if smoke or heat
affects your home and if safe to do so.

If you or your visitors are in the communal areas,
you must leave the building by the nearest exit.

Do not return to your apartment.
If in any doubt, get out.

On exiting the building, proceed to the Fire
Assembly Point (FAP).

Further details of what to do in the event of a fire can
be found in Appendix 1.

Keview and Moviforing

The policy will be reviewed every five years or on
change of legislation or regulatory guidance.

In addition, a Fire Safety Group chaired by the
Compliance Manger will meet quarterly to review any
changes in legislation and processes.

Fire B@gelicsgr Sheltered and Extra Care Accommodation 2022-2027 |11



Appendix |

Instructions to Residents and Visitors

DISCOVERING A FIRE IN/NEAR YOUR FLAT
1. If the fire is in your flat or near vicinity LEAVE IMMEDIATELY

2. If the front door is hot or there is smoke coming in do not open the door. Move into the lounge or bedroom,
shutting the internal door/s and stay by an open window

3. If possible and safe to do so leave the flat and make your way to the nearest fire exit, leave the building, and
meet at the fire assembly point

4. DO NOT RETURN TO YOUR FLAT
5. DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING (unless instructed by Fire Service)

WHEN IN YOUR FLAT AND YOU HEAR THE ALARM

1. You should ‘STAY PUT’ (remain in your flat on alert)
2. You must provide guidance and direction to any visitors in your flat in line with this policy.
3. Keep your front door closed but be ready to leave if instructed.

4. Await further instructions, either by the fire service, the duty staff or via the intercom system.

IF YOU ARE IN A COMMUNAL AREA

1. Make your way calmly to the nearest fire exit, leave the building and meet at the fire assembly point
2. Take any able-bodied person with you

DO NOT USE THE LIFTS

DO NOT STOP TO COLLECT BELONGINGS

DO NOT RETURN TO YOUR FLAT

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNLESS TOLD IT IS SAFE TO DO SO

12 | Fire Safety Policy for Sheltered and Extra Care Accomn%cﬂr&(sg?ON



IF YOU DISCOVER A FIRE IN THE COMMUNAL AREAS

1. Leave the area of the fire immediately and proceed towards the Fire Assembly point via the nearest fire
exit.

2. Operate the nearest manual call point (break glass) when exiting the building or when safe to do so.
3. Only if possible and when safe to do so dial 999, giving them a full address/post code.

Darlington Borough Council’'s CCTV control Centre monitor the fire alarm systems.

On any fire alarm activation, they will:

« Attempt to communicate with Scheme Manager via the intercom to try and establish the cause of the alarm
activation

- Contact the emergency services providing all information

- Instigate the appropriate actions

Assembly Points
Fire Assembly points (FAP):

Safe areas for people to meet and are identified by signage like the example below

(FAP) Locations by Building
- Dalkeith House — The Front Car Park

« Oban Court — The Front Car Park (Staff to Manage
Access)

« Rosemary Court — The Rear Car Park
- Rockwell House — The Front Car Park or Garden Area

« Ted Fletcher Court — The Grassed Area of the Main Car
Park

| |
F I re - Branksome Hall — The Grassed Area Near the Main
Front Car Park
« Linden Court — The Front Car Park

a s S e m b Iy - Dinsdale Court — The Car Park of Dinsdale Close Flats

+ Roxby Court — The Pavement next to The Bungalows

| |
p o I n t « Windsor Court — The Front Car Park or Garden Area

Fire %@@@.@5 Sheltered and Extra Care Accommodation 2022-2027 113



14 | Fire Safety Policy for Sheltered and Extra Care Accomrrgcagﬁ(gﬁZON



Fire %@g’amsfl Sheltered and Extra Care Accommodation 2022-2027 |15



DARLINGTON

Borough Council

hra0038



Annual Report 2021/2022

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee healthw‘tch
Wednesday 2" November 2022 Darlington



Our year in review

Find out how we have engaged and supported people.

Reaching out 384 people

shared their experiences of health and
social care services with us, helping to
raise awareness of issues and improve
care.

0t abed

197 people

came to us for clear advice and
information about topics such as
dentistry, GP access, mental health
services and Covid 19.

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee
2nd November 2022



Our year in review

Find out how we have engaged and supported people.

Making a difference to care

We published 7 reports

about the improvements people would like
AY 8 to see to health and social care services.
«Q
g Our most popular report was

TEWV Community

Transformation Report which

highlighted the struggles people have with
mental health issues

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee 3
2nd November 2022



Our year in review

Find out how we have engaged and supported people.
Health and care that works for you

We're lucky to have 12 outstanding
volunteers, who donated their time to make
care better for our community.

2 abed

We're funded by our local authority. In 2021-
22 we received: £74,460
Which is 2% more than the previous year.

We also currently employ 3 staff who help
us carry out this work.

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee
2nd November 2022



How we've made a difference throughout the year
These are the biggest projects we worked on from April 2021 to March 2022.

Your feedback to us on monitoring blood
pressure at home supported the national
picture to deliver better future

experiences for people who use these
devices.

Qur Healthy Eating and Exercise
initiative led by Youthwatch inspired
families throughout the Borough.

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee
2nd November 2022

%/

We delivered our Digital Exclusion Report
to Darlington Primary Care Network who
committed to review our findings and
make changes where possible.

Darlington Community Hub committed to
working collaboratively, co-production with
local communities and raising awareness of

support as a result of your involvement in
our Mental Health Report.




How we've made a difference throughout the year
These are the biggest projects we worked on from April 2021 to March 2022.

o O
(VD)

T
Our Maternity Experiences Report Our Youthwatch continues to inspire and
was warmly welcomed by the support young people, interviewing
Hospital Trust and helped them NSPCC and Kooth for Children's Mental
understand the needs and concerns Health Week 2021.

of new and expectant parents.

W

Your feedback helped us support Our LGBT+ Experiences of Health
both the national and regional call Services report encouraged the Hospital
for improved access to dentistry. Trust to promote greater awareness of

the HIV testing campaign within the
Borough through training.

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Listening to your experiences

Supporting transformation of mental health services in the community
E l ,/' A ™ : Y

We wanted to gather insight into what matters P ol 1w, 8 A ‘.’.

most to local people regarding mental health | QIS |13 A

support in the community.

We heard from over 120 local people during our
campaign and used this feedback to recommend
areas local services should consider in their
redesign and reorganisation of core community
mental health.

G abed

What difference did we make?
Darlington Community Hub Transformation Working Group committed to:

» Working collaboratively to overcome the barriers faced by our local communities in accessing and
receiving mental health support.

» Co-producing new ways of working in relation to the Community Mental Health Transformation with
local people and communities.

» Raising awareness of what mental health support is already available across Darlington and how to
access services.

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Youthwatch - Reaching
young people and families

Hearing about the rise in young people
consuming unhealthy food and drink and
increasing screen time, our young
volunteers in Youthwatch were inspired to
deliver a campaign. They decided to raise
awareness and promote positive lifestyle
choices, in relation to eafing and
exercising, with families and young people
in Darlington by producing seed boxes.

“| think it did make a difference because it encouraged families to work
together to think about eating healthier choices and could have
possibly influenced children to think about what they eat.”

Ellie, Youthwatch Darlington volunteer

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Seed and wellbeing boxes

Darlington Rotary Club awarded our young volunteers a grant of £250
for a project to make a difference to young people in the town. Our
young volunteers used this grant to create ‘Little Box of Herb’s’ - a free
seed and wellbeing kit containing a healthy recipe card, herb seeds, bag
of sail, planting pots, wellbeing checklist, stickers, and character pencil.
The boxes were delivered to families and organisations in Darlington
reaching more than 50 children.

The boxes were designed to inspire children to think about healthy ways
to create food using ingredients such as fresh herbs which can easily be
grown from home and offer ideas on how to improve overall wellbeing
by taking simple steps such as drinking more water, reducing screen
time and spending time outdoors.

) abed

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Three ways we have made a difference for the
community

Throughout our work we gather information about health inequalities by
speaking to people whose experiences aren’t often heard.

81 abed

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Creating empathy by bringing experiences to life

It's important for the NHS and social care services to step back and see the
bigger picture, through hearing personal experiences, and the impact on
people’s lives.

Our work with Maternity Voices in Partnership (MVP) and a

group of those experiencing maternity care in Darlington,

highlighted three areas critical in ensuring the highest level

of care is available to all.

* Communication - letting patients know what will happen,
when and how.

« Effective planning and communication of business
continuity — recently experienced through the pandemic.

* Recognising when staff need support themselves to give
supportive, empathetic, and understanding levels of
care.

Darlington Clinical Commissioning Group committed to

seek assurances on these areas highlighted in our

Maternity Experiences report via their Quality Committee

61 abed

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Getling services to involve the public

Services need to understand the benefits of involving local people to help
improve care for everyone.

During a year of unprecedented times, NHS GP services

have had to make extraordinary changes to how they
manage access to their services whilst maintaining the
safety needed for patients and carers during the Covid-19
-upandemic.
&
aThanks to grant funding from Healthwatch England and
Darlington Primary Care Network, we looked at the impact
of moving to remote appointments on the population of
Darlington.

Darlington Primary Care Network committed to implement
changes where possible in order to improve access to
general practice and continue their work to reduce
inequalities and improve access for all.

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Improving care over time

Change takes time. We often work behind the scenes with health and care
services to consistently raise issues and push for changes.

Healthwatch England is at the forefront of campaigning for
reform of the NHS dental contract alongside the British
Dental Association (BDA).

;?This year, Healthwatch Darlington joined forces with eight

Sother local Healthwatch to support the national picture as

gwell as informing local service providers of the experiences
of their patients.

We will continue to monitor this area, support local
community voice and provide advice to those who are
experiencing difficulties with dental care.

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




. Advice and :
information

If you feel lost and don’t know where to
turn, Healthwaich is here for you. In
times of worry or stress, we can provide
confidential support and free
information to help you understand your
options and get the help you need.

Whether it’s finding an NHS dentist, how
o make a complaint or choosing a
good care home for a loved one =.y0u...
can count on us.

£ 0 4B ;ac- :
& ﬂ:i 4 \z,;\;
. R e
e~ y

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee
2nd November 2022



Volunteers

We're supported by a team of amazing volunteers who are the heart of
Healthwatch Darlington Thanks to their efforts in the community, we're able to
understand what is working and what needs improving in NHS and social care.

This year our volunteers:

* Helped people have their say from home, carrying out surveys over the
telephone and online.

Created digital content on our website and social media.

» Carried out website and telephone reviews for local services on the
information they provide and assessing their accessibility.

» Assisted as part of ‘Readers’ Panels’ — checking local services’ publications
to make them more people focussed and easier to read.

« Continued to help with the local volunteering efforts supporting those who
were self-isolating.

€g abed

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Voluntary, Community & Social Enterprise
Sector (VCSE)

The lack of a Darlington VCSE infrastructure organisation has resulted in
many local VCSE groups relying on us to distribute and raise awareness of
their services.

Our Darlington Organisations Together (DOT) network has become very
Jpopular with the smaller VCSE organisations and created a forum to
‘Ggenerate opportunities to work together ‘and promote and showcase all
Ltheir work and news.

We have an understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of the VCSE,
which services are well-served and which areas need more support and
funding. In addition to this we have strong links with local, regional, and
national statutory bodies. We can empower the sector to advocate for its
importance, represent the voice of Darlington within the NHS Integrated
Care System and other decision-making forums to ensure continued
support for the sector.

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee
2nd November 2022



Finance and future priorities

To help us carry out our work we receive funding from our local
authority under the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

Income Expense

Funding received from

. £74.460 Staff costs £73,049
local authority '
5 Additional funding £65,059 Operational costs £66,270
@
®
1
o1
Total income £139,519 Total expenditure £139,319

Top three priorities for 2022-23:
* Mental Health Services

« GP Access

e Dentistry

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




Next steps

The pandemic has shone a stark light on the impact of existing inequalities
when using health and care services, highlighting the importance of

championing the voices of those who all too often go unheard.
Over the coming years, our strategic aims are:

 To help reduce these inequalities by making sure your voice is heard, regardless of
where you live, income or race.

« To empower you to voice your worries and concerns and help local and regional
decision-makers to act upon them to improve local services.

9g abed

« To provide you with accurate, reliable, relevant and useful information about local
services, when you need it, in a format that meets your needs.

« To continue to develop effective strategic partnerships with statutory, voluntary and
community sector organisations and established special interest groups, in order to
identify any patterns or trends and take appropriate collaborative action.

 To deliver an effective service for the public and provide maximum public benefit in
return for the investment made in our activities

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




hat current issues are we monitoring?

LGBTQ+ Older People

Description

Issues affecting the wellbeing of older LGBT+ people

NHS pharmacy and
prescriptions

People’s experiences of accessing pharmacy services and
prescriptions, as well as specific issues (repeat prescription
discrepancies).

Access to GP services

People’s experience of trying to access GP services
HWE soon to launch comms kit and survey

Mental Health

Ensuring equity of services and more services are delivered
in the community as has been expressed in our project
work with TEWV

Accessible Information

People’s experiences of getting health and care information
in a format they can understand or being provided with
support to understand information.

Dentistry

Experiences of people accessing dental services

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee

2nd November 2022




For more information

Healthwatch Darlington

Sterling House

22 St Cuthbert’'s Way

Darlington

DL1 1GB

Website: www.healthwatchdarlington.co.uk

Email: info@healthwatchdarlington.co.uk

Tel: 01325 380145

Instagram: @healthwatchdarlington @youthwatchdarlington

YouTube: hitps://youtube.com/channel/UC-mVUiDs78wggkzKpLtPCVw

B 1witter: @healthwatchDton
Facebook: @healthwatchdarlington @youthwatchdarlo

healthwatch
Darlington


http://www.healthwatchdarlington.co.uk/
mailto:info@healthwatchdarlington.co.uk
https://youtube.com/channel/UC-mVUiDs78wgqkzKpLtPCVw

6G abed

ified as: OFFICIAL

Darlington Health Profile
2021/2022

Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee
2" November 2022

Ken Ross
Public Health Principal

§°
;‘;{f_ DARLINGTO

Borough Council

>
Q
@
=
Q
)
®
=
NP



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

09 abed

What are Local Health Profiles?

* The Local Authority Health Profiles provide an overview of health for each local

authority in England. They pull together existing information in one place and
contain data on a range of indicators for local populations, highlighting issues that
can affect health in each locality.

This profile gives a picture of people’s health in Darlington. It is designed to act as
a ‘conversation starter’, to help local us understand our community’s needs, so
that theI “can work together to improve people’s health and reduce health
inequalities.

It is not a performance document. For example an area can show that they have
fewer deaths than average due to smoking — but the data shows that lots of
people a year could still be dying from smoking in this area and reducing smoking
could still'be a local priority.

iy

P
.

LS

#: | DARLINGTON

s (, Borgugh Council



This docu

T9 abed

ment was classified as: OFFICIAL

Domains of the Health Profile

 The Health Profiles are
composed of 42 separate
Indicators across 7 domains.

* Each indicator shows the
Darlington value and how this
compares to Region and
England as whole.

 Each indicator also shows If
there is a statistical difference
between Darlington

* |t also shows where there is a
change from previous years

Bl blEE 2= VA

. Life expectancy and causes of

death

Injuries and ill health
Behavioural risk factors
Child Health

Inequalities

Wider determinants of health
Health protection

\.L:Et{,'
135
£

4% | DARLINGTON

L= (, Borgugh Council



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

29 abed

How do we compare?

O Better 955 O Similar @ Worse 85% (0 Mot applicable CQuintiles: Best” @& @ & @ worst ONot applicable
Becent frends: — Could mot be Mo significant t Increasing & t Increasing & ', Decreasing & ‘ Decreasing & Increasing ', Decreasing
calculated change gefting worse getiing betier getting waorse getting better

Benchrmark Walue

Waorst 25th Percentile 7 5th Percentile Eest

RN
74 /| DARLINGTON

4 | Borough Council



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Compared to
England

Half of all indicators (21)
worse than England
average

One indicator better than
England average

€9 abed

Indigates

Life sxpactanty and causes of ceam

Lt mxgeciancy 2t binh (Make, 3 ye=ar rangs) 2018-20
Lifte expeciancy af birth (Male, 1 ye=ar rang=} 2030
L= expeciancy ot bith [Female, 3 pear ange) 201820
Lt expeciancy at binh [Femais, 1 year ranges} 2020
T8 morialify rate from all causes (3 year ange} 2018-20
T5 maoriaity rate from all causes (1 year ange) 2030
7 TS monaity rabe from 8l canduvascular diseasss 04T - 18
Under 75 manaity rabe from all Candovascular diseases 2020
L1 sl TENDE )
Under T5 monaity rae fom cancer (3 pear range) 2017 - 19
Under 75 monaity rae from cancer (1 yes range) 200
Suicage rale 2018 - 20
Injuries and ill healih
Hilizd and senously Injured (K51} casuaties on 2020
Emgland's roads
=, Wy Hospital Aomissions for Inemional Ser-
o 202
am
Hig fraciures m peape aged &5 and dver 202
Perieilage of CANCETE dEgnosed Al Sages 1 and 2 204
Eslimated disbeles Ma)noss rale 2018
Eslimaled dementia dagnosis rale (sped G5 and cwen
202
Bahavicwnl risk faciors
ASTISSIN ERSO0ES for Akohol-Specific Conaiions - 201819 -
Under 108 2
Admission episodes for akcohol-relaed condiiions
(T Hew method  This indcaior uses a new sef of a0
atirizatable Factiors, and so difer from that anginaly
pubiished
Smcking Prvalencs in aoulis (18] - cunmen smakers |
[4PS) 2013
Srmoking Prevalence in souns (18+] - curent smakers 2020

020 Sefiruian)
PertEnlage of physically attive aduls 20201
Percantage of aculis (aged 16+) classled as

2020

overwsighl of obese
Child hisaith
UNDer 185 CONCEpION rate /1,000 202
Smcking stats i ime of ariery 2020031
Elabe's frst feed breastmilk 201819
Infand mortalty rate 2018 -20
VRAr G PrevancE o7 cbeshy (INCHIng sovere cbasly) 2019020
Ineguasties
D piriwation seone (A0 20990 2019
Smoking prevaience in aduits in reuting and manual 2019
accupaions (18-54) - curmant emokers (APS)
Emcking prevalenos amang adulls aged 18-54 in routine 2020
and manual ccoupations (ARS) (2020 definion]
Inequaiity in e expeclancy at birlh [Mak) 2018-20
Inequalfy in e exseclancy at birth [Femals) 201520
Wider determinants of haaith
Chidren in refative low income famikes (under 15s) 2020721
Chidren in absolule low income familes (under 16s) 2020021
Average sitanment B score 202021
Percentage of pecple in employment 20200
HomeeeEness - NOUEANCKS fwed & culy uncer ne anE
Homelessness Rsduction Act =
wigkn{ crime - Fospial aamissons Tor viokence 201819 -
(INCIUNg sexuat vslence ) 2
Health protection

N Aug 2018 -
Emss winter degins index Jul 2020
New STIdagnoses {Exchding chismydia agsd under 2020
28} per 100,000
TE nCience (Fees year average) 201520

LR DR

Darlingion

1212
443

=3

915

T
5154
§Tae
45,500

T

15

&0

TEA
TE.T
Bi.2
B0.9
4010
436.3
743
B7a
137.4

1604
12.4

5.6
L5
LEE]
56.4%
BE9%

B5.1%

dd d

d52

12.7%
13.5%
61.0%

F25%

16.8
1d &%
535%

[

225%

2T1%

25 7%

12.0
0.6

20.5%
20.8%

50.0
TAA%

gaa

215

5.0

Region England

TTE
TES
L3R
B09
S35
4Z5E

B4

B9

1420
1440
124

Ti.4°

arae
S

5268%

EEE%

136

(==

186
13.9%
506
35
2%

2H0
24.2%
6%

125
0o

29.6%
2T A%
433
T1.2%

7
Iy

PSS pocent Count Vaise Value Value
Trerd

Ta4
TET
B3A
B2E
3355
L]
TO4

1242
1251
104

B.1*
1912
529
s
T

[rd ey

130
6%
&7 4%

39
21,08

a7
24.5%
21.4%

i
2:)

188%
151%

k-]
%

13

e

17d%

B0

1371

1824
1871
a8

438

4.7

123

§4.9%

§0.9%

Bog

22.a8%
20 8%
40.0%

TE.A%

apa
21.a%
43 6%

i

40.3%

17.0
133

42.8%
38.2%

425
63 2%

6.6

116.8

%

Emgland

o

B 20ie

§ 1l geil

T

ar
18%

6.2%
B.2%

ar

120

0.7%

L

DARLINGTON

Borough Council



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Compared to the
North East

One indicator is worse than NE average

3 indicators better than NE average

9 abed

Deararass Osmor @oone s Dot apcabis

Qunttar: Eant D0 80 ot Coiot appicaie

]
]

I
-]

m
F

-4
=

23.0%
21.6%
S0.6
Tdb%

48

Aecesiimrcy = Cosgissiba = Homgdcen  f lscmmng & f mosongs ) Cecmasrg s Dscrusarg & tremameg  f Cocmamsg
RO g [ e R Dt by e ey nemE
*‘
Darlington Region England North East
Indle-wtor P00 ot Coumt Waluk  VEIUE VIS Wari Range [
Tresd
Lite gxpectansy and causes of ceatn
LPe expectancy at bith [Male, 3 year range} 2018-20 = . 7814 TTE T4 5.4
L= expeciancy at birth [Malke, 1 year rang=} 200 - . TE.T TES TET T4E
Life expeciancy 2 birth [Female, 3 year ange} 2018 -2 = - B2 ES B31 T8
LFe expaciancy 2t binh [Female, 1 year ange} 200 ~ - B0 =09 BzE RO
Under 75 mortalty rate from al causes (3 year ange}  20M8-20 0 = 1212 4040 4038 3358 4229
Under 78 movtatty rabe from al causes. (1 year mnge) 2000w M3 4358 gme asas B21D [ o)
LInger 75 monaity rae om 8l candavasider 0iseases y 7
e 217-19 s 743 el 04 0.8 N O
Under 75 manaity rabe from gl cardgvasoular deesses
-
[ e L 2020 88 B71 B33 Tis 1020 (e ]
Under 75 monaity rahe om Cancer (3 year rangs| anT-19 b 41% 1374 1480 12032 1750 ’
Under 75 manaity rabe from cancer (1 yea range| 200 - 165 160.8 140 1259 1671
Swicae rate aE-m - - 124 124 104 T4
Injuries and il haattn
Hilled and senioushy inured (K51) casuati=s on . _ , - e . —
Erlands st 200 w0658 14% B8 9.2
E::frgerc,' Hiospital Admizsions for Inlendonal Sef- S0 - WS 05 2739 1612 AT _
Hip frachires n peope aped 65 and gver 2020 - s Gay B e 647 42
Pergeniage of cancers diagnoses ai siages 1ang 2 2019 - HE 564N S26% Bl 50.1%
Estimated disbeies tiagnoss rale 2mE - - B5O% &25% TEOR TH.A% Qs 1%
Etinreaten dementia Jagnasis rae (apec 65 and cwern 202 - 915 651% B6A% 620% B0.0%
Behavigwral risk facters
Admicsion episedes for alcehokspeciic congiions - AidG- - _
Under 185 20/ 0 44.4 20 233 =8
Admizsion episodes for 2kcohol-related condiions
(M Mem MENnaD. TRS iINGCanr USes & New 520 of
l - T 5 _

BN ¥aCiong, and 50 differ fom al onginaly AT, a -l - iy &o
piitisned
ISI"::Irg Prevalence in adulis (18+) - curent smokers ams ¥ . 197% 153% 156 19.3% ‘ -
Smoking Pravalencs in sl (18+) - cunrent smokers i ] P .
[APE) {2020 defnition) G o i Ml Ml r s [ e |
Peesantage of physically Bctive aduts P I - B10% B3E% 659 51.9% CHE
Pergentage of acuns (aged 16+) cassited a3 . i > - - 2
CNeTEROIT! O 0065 202021 - T25% E9T% G38% THA% _
Child heath
Under 185 concepinn rate 1 000 20 - - 6.6 186 150 and
SMOKING B1a0S 31 Tme of delivery 2020 . - 1a4% 133%  96% 15.5%
Bealoey's Trst o Evesssimik 201819 - S5 50 S08% ET4% 48.0%
Infan monaiy @i AiF-: - LT 1) 35 38 s
aur 6 Prevalence of cbesly (INCIIOING Severs cbesly) 201090 = 4 225% FIw 2104 27 0%
Ineguaities
Diapiivalion score (WD 2018 Wy - : /7 WO 7 ans | &
SMoKing prevaience in adults in moutne and manul r p Pl 3 Sy . _
DCTUPEICNS (18-54) - CUTEN sMokers (APS) B R, " G’y
Smoking prevalence among adults aged 15.54 in routine y _ 4 I, L _
and manual cooupations [APS) (2020 definition) 20 T N Nk 28.2%
Inegquality in | expecian: Eirif (Mak) 208-0 - - e 125 a7 45
Inespualiny i I exgeciancy &t binh (Femalk) 2nE-m - o LU 41 ] 79 138
Wiser determinants of heaith
Chigran in esatios 0w inCome Tamiles (undsi 16) 2020 t 5732 265% I96% 185% 42 8%
Chidran in abediule ow income Tamiles (unser 185) 20021 t 519 2586% Ik 150% 02%
Auerage Afiainment b soom 22021 - 5721& 500 403 508 46.5
Perteniage of peopis in ampkoyTenl 22 - SBE0 A% T12% TE1% Ba 2%
Homeiesaness - Mnusenoiss owed & ouly uner e . - - 4 o
ok I recur onlit 2021 ™ 14T 128 ma 54 .
Viokent orime - hospial somissions for viclenoe 201815 - ol
(InCING Sexiial Woleros | 2 > = e P ¢
Health prodection
Exess winler desns. inoex Jul 3020 B0 MER 4% 174 236% 0
New ST) dagnoses jexchaling Chimydia aged under o N ) 4 ) . L
25} per 100,000 |
TB FCHENCE (IVEE Vo8I BVEFBOE -0 - ® 50 35 B0 95 o = |

8

DARLINGTON

Borough Council



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

G9 abed

The Health Profile in Summary

The health of people in Darlington is varied compared with the England averaqe. Half (21)

of all the indicators are worse than England with the other half stagstically sim

llar or better

than England.

Some key points

Life expectancy is 13.0 years lower for men and 10 years lower for women in the most deprived
areas of Darlington than in the least deprived areas and continues to widen.

About 28.5%(5,732) children live in low income families. This is worse than England
In Year 6, 22.5% of children are classified as obese. This is similar to England
Levels of smoking in pregnancy remain worse than the England average.

The rate for alcohol-related harm hospital admissions is 552 per 100,000 This represents 587
admissions per year. This is worse for England

Estimated levels of excess weight in adults (aged 18+) and physically active adults (aged 19+) are
worse than the England average.

Diabetes diagnosis rate is 85.9% This is better than England

The rate of excess winter deaths and new cases of tuberculosis is similar to the %ggland average.
{?._ﬂ.ra_-. fl
rw+ . | DARLINGTON

¢ | Borough Council

T
i’

g



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Commentary

* The health of people in Darlington is varied compared with the
England average.

* There are broad social and economic circumstances that together
iInfluence health throughout the life course are known as the ‘social
determinants of health'.

* However, it is important to note that the social factors are not the
only causes of ill health, they are the complementary causes.

 Darlington Profile is more similar to the North East Regional average
which reflects the social, economic, historical, cultural and
environmental circumstances that our residents live and work in.

99 abed

KN
gt V! o,
L5,

DARLINGTON

Borough Council




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Detail of by Domain

/9 abed

Compared to the England

o
J’;'*-._;’”‘

\i,/\ DARLINGTON
% | Borough Council



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

1. Life Expectancy and Causes of Death

Darlington Region England England
Indicator Period pocent Count Value Value Value Worst Range Best
Trend
Life expectancy at birth (Male, 3 year range) i I : 781 776 794 74.1 o |
p ) (v L0y ge) 20 . | . .
Life expectancy at birth (Male, 1 year range) 2020 - 4 767 769 787 736 e | 3
. o 2018-
- Life expectancy at birth (Female, 3 year range) 20 - 81.2 81.5 83.1 79.0 .-
& Life expectancy at birth (Female, 1 year range) 2020 - 1 809 809 826 78.0 ® |
g Under 75 mortality rate from all causes (3yearrange) 20 = 1212 4010 4035 3365 570.7 o | 221.0
0 Under 75 mortality rate from all causes (1 yearrange) 2020 = 443 4369 4256 3585 6228 e | 205.8
Under 75 mortali’[y rate from all cardiovascular diseases (3 2017 - . }
Jear range) a 223 743 821 704 1216 e | 436
Under 75 moﬁahty rate from all cardiovascular diseases (1 5020 > 88 a7 1 839 738 137 1 _ 6 1
year range)
_ . 2017 - ,
Under 75 mortality rate from cancer (3 year range) MIEE M3 1374 1490 1292 182.4 e 7.4
Under 75 mortality rate from cancer (1 year range) 2020 = 165 1609 1440 1251 187.1 e || 3
. 2018 -
Suicide rate - : 124 124 104 18.8 ol 50
OBetter 95% O Similar @ Worse 95% Mot applicable Quintiles: BestZ) & @ & ®worst O Mot applicable g DARLINGTON
Becent frends: — Could not be s Mo significant t Increasing & t Increasing & .', Decreasing & '. Decreasing & Increasing .', Decreasing Borough Council
calculated change getling warse getiing betier getting worse getting better

Benchimark Walue

Wulrst 25th Percentile 7 Sth Percentile Belst



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Injuries and lll Health

Darlington Region England England
Indicator Perod cecent Count Value Value Value Worst Range
Trend
Killed and seriously injured (KSI1) casualties on England's 2020 . 30 656 T14* 861* 4339 D

T roads

) Emergency Hospital Admissions for Intentional Self-Harm 202021 = 305 3005 2739 1812 4717 ® |

(@)

D Hip fractures in people aged 65 and over 2020/21 = 145 643 596 529 723 @ -

8 Percentage of cancers diagnosed at stages 1 and 2 2019 L4 268 56.4% 526% 55.0% - Insufficient number of values for & spine chart
Estimated diabetes diagnosis rate 2018 - : 85.9% 825% 78.0% 54.3% | Ke)
Estimated dementia diagnosis rate (aged 65 and over)

> 66.7% E nificantly)  similar to 66.7% |PYERE 2022 = 915 65.1% 666% 62.0% 50.3% e
OBetter 95% O Similar @ Worse 95% O Mot applicable Quintiles: BestT' @ & @ ®worst O Not applicable
Recent frends: — Could not b2 = No significant -.- Increasing & f Increasing & .l, Decreasing & ', Decreasing & Increasing .', Decreasing
calculated change geiting worse geifing betler getting worse getting better
Benchrmark YWalue
Wn:nlrst 25th Percentile 75th Percentile

Best

241

41.5
315

97.5%

82.4%

L
Best

£ DARLINGTON

“%"%4 | Borough Council



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Behavioural Risk Factors

Darlington Region England England
Indicator Period pecent Count Value Value Value Worst Range
Trend
Admission episodes for alcohol-specific conditions - 201819 - _ 20 44.4 520 293 838
Under 18s 20/21
T Admission episodes for alcohol-related conditions
QD (Marrow): New method. This indicator uses a new set of -
% attributable fractions, and so differ from that originally Q2021 pa7 e Y <4 fos
~ published
o [ i (18+) -
SITIOFI.IF'IQ Prevalence in adults (18+) - current smokers 2019 i - 13.7% 15.3% 13.9% 23 4%
(APS)
Smoking Prevalence in adults (18+) - current smokers _ of oy or o
(APS) (2020 definition) 2020 - 13.5% 13.6% 12.1% 20.8%
Percentage of physically active adults 202021 - - 61.0% 63.5% 659% 48.8%
Percentage of adults (aged 18+) classified as overweight 2020/21 fa 4 79 5% £9.7% 63.5% 7639 .
or obese
O Better 95% O Similar @ Worse 95% O Mot applicable Guintiles: Best" @ @ & @ worst ONot applicable
Recent frends: — Could not be = Mo significant t Increasing & t Increasing & .', Decreasing & ', Decreasing & Increasing .', Decreasing

calculated change getling worse

getiing betier

getting worse getting betier

Berchimark

Wulrst 25th Percentile

Yalue

roth Percentile

)
= £

T
'.IL

Best

'R

g

7.7

251

8.0%

9%

76.5%

L
Best

DARLINGTON

Borough Council



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Child Health

Darlington Region England England
Indicator Period pecent Count Value Value Value Worst Range Best
Trend

Under 18s conception rate / 1,000 2020 = F 16.8 18.6 13.0 30.4 27

Smoking status at time of delivery 2020121 = - 144% 133% 96% 21.4% o - 1.8%
g-? Baby's first feed breastmilk 2018119 - 565 53.3% 506% 67.4% 43.6% e |
S Infant mortality rate 2018-20 - 16 50 35 3.9 6.8 ol | | 1.7
l:l Year 6. Prevalence of obesity (including severe obesity) 201920 - - 225% 23.2% 21.0% 30.1%

OBetter 955 O Similar @ Worse 95% O Mot applicable Quintiles: BestC' @ @ & ®worst O Not applicable
Recent frends: = Could not b2 = No significant -.- Increasing & t Increasing & ', Decreasing & ', Decreasing & Increasing ', Decreasing
calculated change getling worse getiing betier getting worse getting betier
Benchmark alue
'I.I"-.I'nlrst 25th Percentile 75th Percentile Eelst

DARLINGTON

Borough Council




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Indicater

Deprivation score (IMD 2019)

Smoking prevalence in adults in routine and manual
occupations (18-64) - current smokers (APS)

Smoking prevalence among adults aged 18-64 in routine
and manual occupations (APS) (2020 definition)

¢/ abed

Inequality in life expectancy at birth (Male)

Inequality in life expectancy at birth (Female)

OBetter 95% O Similar @ Worse 95% (O Mot applicable

= Could not b2 = Mo significant
calculated change

Recent trends:

t Increasing &
getling worse

Inequalities

Darlington Region England

Period pecent Count Value Value Value
Trend

2019 - ] 257 280 217
2019 - ; 27.1% 24.3% 245%
2020 - 2 257% 216% 21.4%
2018 -
o : 13.0 125 9.7
2018 -
- ; 106 100 7.9

Quintiles: Best" @ @ @& @ worst ONot applicable

t Increasing &
getiing befter

4§ Decreasing &
getting worse

4 Decreasing &
getting betier

England
Worst Range Best

45.0 58

36.8%
40.3% 7.9%

17.0

139

Increasing '. Decreaszing
Benchrmark Walue

'I.I"-.I'nlrst 25th Percentile 7 5th Percentile Belst

DARLINGTON

Borough Council




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Wider Determinants of Health

Indicator

Children in relative low income families (under 16s)
Children in absolute low income families (under 16s)
Average Attainment & score

Percentage of people in employment

Homelessness - households owed a duty under the
Homelessness Reduction Act

Wiolent crime - hospital admissions for violence
(including sexual violence)

¢/ abed

OEetter 95% O Similar @ Worse 95%

— Could not be = Mo significant
calculated change

Recent trends:

Mot applicable

t Increasing &
getting worse

Period

2020121
2020121
202021
2020121

2020/21

2018M19 -

20/21

Darlington Region England

Recent Count Value Value Value
Trend

] 5732 285% 296% 18.5%

+ 5194 258% 271% 151%

- 57.218 50.0 493 509

- 46500 7T31% T12% 751%

- 711 147 12.5 1.3

155 52.2 60.0 419

CQuintilez: BestD) & @ & @ worst ONot applicable

4 Increasing &
getting befier

§ Decreasing &
getting worse

§ Decreasing &
getting betier

England
Worst Range Best
42.4% ® | 6.2%
39.2% ® | 5.2%
429 o
63.2% ol 3%
116.8 o 12.0
Increasing ', Decreaging
Berchrmark YWalue
Wl:ulrst 25th Percentile 75th Percentile Bf;st

%

DARLINGTON

Borough Council

i
s |
o

SIS




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Health Protection

Darlington Region England
Indicator Period  cocent Count Value Value Value Worst
Trend

Jv) -
) Excess winter deaths index Al 2089l 80 218% 141% 17.4% 50.2%
Q 2020
@ New STI diagnoses (excluding chlamydia aged 2099 \ _ ) \ ) )
IN under 25) per 100,000

TE incidence (three year average) 2018 - 20 = 16 5.0 3.9 8.0 431

O Better 95% O Similar @ Worse 95% (O Mot applicable CQuintiles: BestZ) @ @ & @ worst O Mot applicable

Recent frends: — Could not be = Mo significant t Increasing &
calculated change getiing worse:

'- Increasing &
geiting better

.', Decreasing & J, Decreasing &
getting worse getting betier

Wulrst 25th Percentile

Increasing .', Decreasing

England

Range Best

ap 0.7%

o 06

Berchimark; Walue

roth Percentile Be:st

DARLINGTON

Borough Council




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL Age nda Item 9

HEALTH AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2 NOVEMBER 2022

WORK PROGRAMME

SUMMARY REPORT

Purpose of the Report

1. To consider the work programme items scheduled to be considered by this Scrutiny
Committee during the 2022/23 Municipal Year and to consider any additional areas which
Members would like to suggest should be added to the previously approved work
programme.

Summary

2. Members are requested to consider the attached work programme (Appendix 1) for the
remainder of the 2022/23 Municipal Year which has been prepared based on Officers
recommendations and recommendations previously agreed by this Scrutiny Committee.

3. Any additional areas of work which Members wish to add to the agreed work programme
will require the completion of a quad of aims in accordance with the previously approved
procedure (Appendix 2).

Recommendation

6. Itis recommended that Members note the current status of the Work Programme and
consider any additional areas of work they would like to include.

Luke Swinhoe
Assistant Director Law and Governance
Background Papers

No background papers were used in the preparation of this report.

Author : Hannah Miller 5801

Page 75



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

S17 Crime and Disorder

This report has no implications for Crime and
Disorder

Health and Well Being

This report has no direct implications to the Health
and Well Being of residents of Darlington.

Carbon Impact and Climate | There are no issues which this report needs to
Change address.
Diversity There are no issues relating to diversity which this

report needs to address

Wards Affected

The impact of the report on any individual Ward is
considered to be minimal.

Groups Affected

The impact of the report on any individual Group is
considered to be minimal.

Budget and Policy Framework

This report does not represent a change to the
budget and policy framework.

Key Decision

This is not a key decision.

Urgent Decision

This is not an urgent decision

Council Plan The report contributes to the Council Plan in a
number of ways through the involvement of
Members in contributing to the delivery of the Plan.
Efficiency The Work Programmes are integral to scrutinising

and monitoring services efficiently (and effectively),
however this report does not identify specific
efficiency savings.

and Care Leavers

Impact on Looked After Children

This report has no impact on Looked After Children
or Care Leavers.

Page 76




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

MAIN REPORT

Information and Analysis

10.

The format of the proposed work programme has been reviewed to enable Members of this
Scrutiny Committee to provide a rigorous and informed challenge to the areas for
discussion.

The Council Plan sets the vision and strategic direction for the Council through to May 2023,
with its overarching focus being ‘Delivering success for Darlington’.

In approving the Council Plan, Members have agreed to a vision for Darlington which is a
place where people want to live and businesses want to locate, where the economy
continues to grow, where people are happy and proud of the borough and where everyone
has the opportunity to maximise their potential.

The visions for the Health and Housing portfolio is:-
‘a borough where people enjoy productive, healthy lives. They will have access to excellent

leisure facilities and recognising the importance of having a home, there will be access to
quality social housing.’

Forward Plan and Additional Items

11.

12.

Once the Work Programme has been agreed by this Scrutiny Committee, any Member
seeking to add a new item to the work programme will need to complete a quad of aims.

A copy of the Forward Plan has been attached at Appendix 3 for information.

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

APPENDIX 1

HEALTH AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

Last considered 31
August 2022

Lead Officer/
Topic Timescale Organisation . . .,
Link to PMF (metrics) Scrutiny’s Role
Involved
Better Care Fund 2 November 2022 Paul Neil To receive an update on the position of

the Better Care Fund for Darlington.

Darlington Health Profile

2 November 2022

Penny Spring

Annual report

g/ abed

) Drug and Alcohol Service Contract -
We Are With You

=

2 November 2022

Last considered 27
April 2022

Mark Harrison/Jon
Murray

To update Scrutiny Members undertake
any further work if necessary.

[ Housing Services Fire Safety Policy

2 November 2022

Anthony Sandys

To seek Scrutiny Members views prior
to Cabinet.

Healthwatch Darlington - The Annual
Report of Healthwatch Darlington

2 November 2022

Last considered 20
October 2021

Michelle
Thompson, HWD

To scrutinise and monitor the service
provided by Healthwatch — Annual

Low Cost Home Ownership Policy

14 December 2022

Anthony Sandys

To seek Scrutiny Members views prior
to Cabinet.

June 2022

CAMHS update 14 December 2022 Jennifer
Illingworth/James
Last considered 29 Graham




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Topic

Timescale

Lead Officer/
Organisation
Involved

Link to PMF (metrics)

Scrutiny’s Role

Community Mental Health
Transformation

14 December 2022

Last considered 2
February 2022

Jo Murray/Maxine
Crutwell, TEWV

To receive a briefing and undertake any
further detailed work if necessary.

Performance Management and
Regulation/ Management of Change

Regular Performance Reports to be
Programmed

Q2
14 December 2022

Relevant AD

Full PMF suite of
indicators

To receive biannual monitoring reports
and undertake any further detailed
work into particular outcomes if
necessary

nQ abed

<

’ Preventing Homelessness and Rough
Sleeping Strategy Update

\ =4

14 December 2022

Last considered 20
October 2021

Anthony Sandys

To look at progress following the
implementation of the strategy.
Update on current position within
Darlington

Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP)
and Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

11 January 2023
(Special)

Brett Nielsen/
Anthony Sandys

Primary Care (to include GP Access to
appointments)

8 February 2023

Last considered 2
February 2022

Emma Joyeux
CCG/Amanda Riley

To scrutinise development around
Primary Care Network and GP work

Director of Public Health Annual
Report

8 February 2023

Penny Spring

Annual report

Housing Services Allocations Policy

8 February 2023

Anthony Sandys

To seek Scrutiny Members views prior
to Cabinet.




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Topic

Timescale

Lead Officer/
Organisation
Involved

Link to PMF (metrics)

Scrutiny’s Role

Dental Services

8 February 2023

Last considered 31
August 2022

Pauline Fletcher,
NHS England

To update Scrutiny Members undertake
any further work if necessary.

Integrated Care System (ICS)

8 February 2023

Last considered
23 February 2022

David Gallagher,
ICB

To scrutinise and challenge progress of
the principles underpinning the ICS and
BHP and timelines for progress.

Health and Safety Compliance in
Council Housing

June/July 2023

Last considered 29
June 2022

Anthony Sandys

To provide annual updates to Scrutiny
Members undertake any further work if
necessary.

18 obed

Housing Services Anti-Social Behaviour
 Policy — Update

June/July 2023

Last considered 29
June 2022

Anthony Sandys

To provide annual updates to Scrutiny
Members undertake any further work if
necessary.

Customer Engagement Strategy 2021-
2024 Update (Presentation)

To be agreed

Last considered 31
August 2022

Anthony Sandys

To provide annual progress reports to
Scrutiny. To look at work being done
within communities and how the
Customer Panel engage with new
communities.

Strategic Housing Needs Assessment

To be agreed

Anthony Sandys




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

JOINT COMMITTEE WORKING — ADULTS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Topic

Timescale

Lead Officer/
Organisation
Involved

Link to PMF (metrics)

Scrutiny’s Role

Loneliness and Connected
Communities

Adults Scrutiny to Lead

Scoping meeting 28
January 2020

Meeting on 5
October 2020

Meeting on 15
December 2020

79 abed

Care Homes in Special Measures

Adults Scrutiny to Lead

TBC




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

MEMBERS BRIEFINGS

Topic

Timescale

Lead Officer/
Organisation
Involved

Link to PMF (metrics)

Scrutiny’s Role

CQC Ratingsin the Borough of Darlington

£g abed

October 2022

Scoping Meeting
held 18 November
2019

Briefing note
circulated 21
October 2020

Briefing note
circulated October
2021

To monitor and evaluate CQC scoring
across the Borough for heath and care
settings.




This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Appendix 2

PROCESS FOR ADDING AN ITEM TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEE’S
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED WORKPROGRAMME

Member Completes Quad of Aims
(Section 1)

Completed Quad of Aims to
Democratic Services

|

Refer to Monitoring and
Co-ordination Group for clarification
of appropriate Scrutiny Committee
and in cases of cross cutting issues if
needed

|

Advise Chair of relevant Scrutiny
Committee of the Quad of Aims and
the view of Officers

|

Include on next Scrutiny Committee
Agenda
(new work requests)

}

Scrutiny Committee decision about
addition to Work Programme

Forwarded to Director/AD
for views (section 2)

E— (NOTE — There is an expectation that the Officer

will discuss therequest with the Member)

Criteria

1. Information already provided/or will
be provided to Member

2. Extent of workload involved in
meeting request

3. Request linked to an ongoing
Scrutiny Committee item of work
and can be picked up as part of that
work

4. Subject to another Council process
for enquiry or examination (such as
Planning Committee or Licensing
Committee)

5. About anindividual or entity that
has a right of appeal

6. Some other substantial reason

Note

Statutory Scrutiny Officer can liaise with
Member AD/Director and Chair over
how best any requests can be dealt with

PLEASE RETURN TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

T:/Scrutiny/$obieinkd.docx

Page 85



QUAD OF AIMS (MEMBERS’ REQUEST FOR ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED BY SCRUTINY)
SECTION 1 TO BE COMPLETED BY MEMBERS

NOTE — This document should only be completed if there is a clearly defined and significant outcome from any potential further work. This document
should not be completed as a request for or understanding of information.

9g abed

REASON FOR REQUEST? RESOURCE (WHAT OFFICER SUPPORT WOULD YOU REQUIRE?)
PROCESS (HOW CAN SCRUTINY ACHIEVE THE ANTICIPATED HOW WILL THE OUTCOME MAKE A DIFFERENCE?
OUTCOME?)

Signed Councillor .......viiivnnensenisnsnsensesnsnninnee Date cececrerercrrerersercaeeenne senerenne senees seneanens




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

/8 abed

SECTION 2 TO BE COMPLETED BY DIRECTORS/ASSISTANT DIRECTORS
(NOTE - There is an expectation that Officers will discuss the request with the Member)

(a) Isthe information available elsewhere? YES oo NO oot

If yes, please indicate where the information can be found (attach if possibleand return with this document to Democratic
Services)

staff?

Criteria

Information already
provided/or will be
provided to Member

Extent of workloadinvolved
in meeting request

Request linked to an
ongoing Scrutiny
Committee item of work
andcanbe picked up as
part of that work

Subject to another Council
process for enquiry or
examination (suchas
Planning Committee or
Licensing Committee)

About an individual or
entity that has a right of
appeal

Some other substantial
reason

PLEASE RETURN TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

T:/Scrutiny/$obieinkd.docx




This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

DARLINGTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

FOR THE PERIOD: 5 OCTOBER 2022 - 28 FEBRUARY 2023

FORWARD PLAN

DARLINGTON

Borough Council

FORWARD PLAN

Title

Decision Maker and Date

Household Support Fund

Cabinet 11 Oct 2022

Ingenium Parc — Proposed
Development Update

Cabinet 11 Oct 2022

Objections to the Experimental
TRO on Coniscliffe Road

Cabinet 11 Oct 2022

Peer Review

Cabinet 11 Oct 2022

Schedule of Transactions -
October 2022

Cabinet 11 Oct 2022

Treasury Management Annual
and Outturn Prudential
Indicators 2021/22

Cabinet 11 Oct 2022

Annual Audit Letter 2020/21

Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Council Tax Exemption for Care
Leavers 2023/24

Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Council Tax Support - Scheme
Approval 2023/24

Council 24 Nov 2022
Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Darlington Transport Plan

Council 24 Nov 2022
Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Disposal of Land at Neasham
Road for Housing Development

Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Land at Faverdale - Burtree
Garden Village Development

Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Position Statement on First
Homes Policy and Discount For
Sale

Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Project Position Statement and

Capital Programme Monitoring -

Quarter 2

Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Revenue Budget Monitoring -
Quarter 2

Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Schedule of Transactions -
November 2022

Cabinet 8 Nov 2022

Complaints Made to Local

Cabinet 6 Dec 2022

-1-

Page 89




This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

DARLINGTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

FORWARD PLAN

Government Ombudsman

Housing Revenue Account -
Medium Term Financial Plan
2022/23 to 2025/26

Cabinet 6 Dec 2022

Housing Services Fire Safety
Policy

Cabinet 6 Dec 2022

Medium Term Financial Plan
20023/24 to 2026/27

Cabinet 6 Dec 2022

Mid-Year Prudential Indicators

and Treasury Management
2022/23

Council 26 Jan 2023
Cabinet 6 Dec 2022

Land Assembly for Development
at Gladstone Street / Kendrew
Street (including Northgate
House)

Cabinet 6 Dec 2022

Final Version of Supplementary
Planning Guidance (SPD) Design
Code - Skerningham Garden
Village

Cabinet 10Jan 2023

Maintained Schools Capital
Programme - Summer 2023

Cabinet 10Jan 2023

Quarter 2 - Council Plan 2020/23
- Delivering Success for
Darlington - Performance Report

Cabinet 10Jan 2023

Calendar of Council and
Committee Meetings 2023/24

Cabinet 7 Feb 2023

Darlington Capital Strategy
including Capital Programme

Council 16 Feb 2023
Cabinet 7 Feb 2023

Housing Revenue Account -
Medium Term Financial Plan
2023/24 to 2026/27

Council 16 Feb 2023
Cabinet 7 Feb 2023

Medium Term Financial Plan
20023/24 to 2026/27

Council 16 Feb 2023
Cabinet 7 Feb 2023

Project Position Statement and
Capital Programme Monitoring -
Quarter 3

Cabinet 7 Feb 2023

Prudential Indicators and
Treasury Management Strategy
Report 2023/24

Council 16 Feb 2023Cabinet 7 Feb 2023

Revenue Budget Monitoring -
Quarter 3

Cabinet 7 Feb 2023

Schools Admissions 2024/25

Cabinet 7 Feb 2023

Page 90




	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny held on 31 August 2022
	4 Better Care Fund
	5 Darlington Drug and Alcohol Service (STRIDE)
	6 Housing Services Fire Safety Policy
	Item No. 6 - Housing Services Fire Safety Policy Appendix 1

	7 Healthwatch Darlington Annual Report 2021/2022
	8 Darlington Health Profile 2021/2022
	9 Work Programme
	Item No. 9 - Appendix 1
	Item No. 9 - Appendix 2
	Item No. 9 - Appendix 3


